
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 

A meeting of the above will be held virtually on  
 

Thursday 25 June 2020 at 1.30pm 
 

Details of how to access the meeting will be published along with this agenda on the 
Council’s web site or can be obtained by contacting Democratic Services. 

 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE 
(Chairman) 

Councillor C J Shippam 
(Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE 

Councillor S H Brown Councillor A R Lloyd Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
Councillor R J Wells   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

Wednesday 17 June 2020 



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

CABINET  
Thursday 25 June 2020 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Strategic Directors. 
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 28 
May 2020 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 28 May  
2020 as an accurate record. 
 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC 

5. References from Other Committees   

 There are currently no references from other committees. 
 

 

A - Strategies, Policies, Key Decisions, Consultations 

There are no items in this section. 
 
B - Non-Key Decisions, Monitoring Reports 

6. COVID-19 Financial Update (Pages 11 - 16)  

 Summary: 
 
To inform Cabinet of the potential financial impact of the Covid 19 
pandemic on the 2020/21 General Fund, Capital and HRA budgets 
due to reduced income or increased expenditure. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. That Members note the report and agree the proposed funding 

of the initial shortfall identified; 

 

 



4 

2. That members note the possible implications for the collection 
fund and the possible impact on next year’s General Fund 
position; and  

3. That  Members note monitoring and reporting will continue as the 
year progresses. 

 

7. Annual Treasury Report 2019/20 (Pages 17 - 36)  

 Summary: 
 
To inform the Cabinet of the outturn position (subject to audit) of the 
Council’s investments and borrowing for the 2019/20 financial year 
and of  the outturn position of  the Council’s treasury indicators. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
1. That the Cabinet notes the outturn for the Council’s treasury 
    management operations for 2019/20; and 
 
2. That the Cabinet notes the outturn for the Council’s treasury 
    indicators. 
 

 

8. Capital Programme including Prudential Indicators - Outturn 
2019/20 (Pages 37 - 50) 

 

 Summary: 
 
To inform Cabinet of the final pre-audit figures for the 2019/20 
Capital Programme, the capital resources that were used to fund it 
and those that remain available to fund future investment. 

 
Recommendations: 
 
1. That Cabinet note the draft outturn for the Capital 

Programme for 2019/20; 
 
2. That Cabinet note the draft outturn position for 

2019/20 on Capital resources, and the balance 
available to be carried forward into 2020/21; 

 
3. That the Cabinet recommend the total capital budget 

carried forward into 2020/21, as set out in Appendix C to 
the General Assembly of the Council; 

 
4. That Cabinet note the outturn position on the 

Capital Prudential Indicators as shown in 
Appendix D; and 

 

5. That the General Assembly of the Council be asked to 

 



5 

agree the capital budget carried forward into 2020/21 as 
per Appendix C, thereby increasing the total capital 
budget  to £31.036M. 

 
C - Items for Information, Noting, Endorsing 

9. Revenue Outturn 2019/20 (Pages 51 - 62)  

 Summary: 
 
To inform Members of the detailed final pre-audit 2019/20 figures 
for the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, including 
reasons for significant variances compared to the probable 
outturn. 
 

Recommendation: 
 
That the 2019/20 outturn for the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account, together with the reasons for significant 
variances compared to probable outturn, be noted 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Thursday 28 May 2020 at 1.30 pm  
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Chairman) 
Councillor C J Shippam (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE 
Councillor S H Brown 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
Councillor R J Wells 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services) 
Sarah Martin, Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
Alan Twyman, Democratic Services Manager 
David Hook, Democratic Services Officer 
Paul Blake, IT Transformation Manager  
 

  
 

103. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Cabinet, Councillor J A Kite, 
welcomed the Cabinet to the first meeting to be held online and also 
welcomed viewers watching the meeting on YouTube. He introduced the 
members of the Cabinet and the officers attending the meeting. He explained 
that the Cabinet met on a monthly basis, usually preceded by a Cabinet 
Advisory Panel which provided a mechanism for Councillors outside the 
Cabinet to give their views on matters on the agenda. Although the CAP 
meetings were not being held due to the current national public health 
emergency members of CAP had been given the opportunity to raise issues 
for consideration at the meeting and one suggestion had been received. He 
explained that the Council’s democratic and decision making processes 
continued to operate during the emergency period and that, whilst the Cabinet 
had not met formally since the start of March, there had been weekly informal 
Cabinet briefings to which senior members of the other political groups on the 
Council had made constructive contributions.   
 

104. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
Councillor Wells joined the meeting by telephone during consideration of item 
5, References from Other Committees, due to technical difficulties in 
accessing the meeting online.      
 

105. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 

2 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

106. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD 
ON 5 MARCH 2020  
 
The Cabinet considered the minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2020. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 5 March 2020 be 
confirmed as an accurate record.  
 

107. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

108. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
There were no references from other committees.  
 

109. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO THE CORONAVIRUS 
PANDEMIC  
 
The Chairman introduced a report which detailed the implications for the 
Council of the ongoing coronavirus pandemic and the actions taken by the 
Council to maintain essential services and to support the residential and 
business communities in the borough of Dartford during the national 
emergency.  
 
The report detailed the background to the emerging public health crisis 
following the declaration of COVID-19 as a pandemic by the World Health 
Organisation on 11th March and the emergency measures subsequently 
introduced by the Government to combat the spread of the virus on 23rd 
March, commonly called lockdown. This had resulted in the closure of most 
non-essential businesses, the shielding or self-isolation of the vulnerable 
and elderly, and arrangements for social distancing. The Government had 
subsequently introduced a number of national and local support 
programmes to be administered or supported by local authorities.  
 
These measures had significant impacts for the Council in seeking to 
maintain ‘business as usual’ for its core services, and through additional 
service demands driven by the effect of the new restrictions on individuals 
and businesses, and also by the need to provide humanitarian community 
support to the most vulnerable residents. 
 
The Chairman explained that the current situation was unprecedented and 
that it was important to provide an update on how the Council and the 
community had responded, and would continue to do so during the recovery 
period, the help that had been given to local people and businesses and 
how the Council had maintained its services and democratic processes 
during the crisis and would continue to provide leadership during the 
recovery phase.  
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 
 

3 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

The Council had initially provided emergency support to the most vulnerable 
and needy, Dartford’s share of the 1.4M people nationally identified as being 
most at risk. All those in this clinically vulnerable cohort received a letter 
from the NHS asking if they required support with accessing food and 
medicine during the 12 week period in which they were expected to be 
‘shielded’ at home. Individuals were asked to register via a website or 
hotline indicating their need for support. The Council had initially focussed 
on providing support for this cohort and had set up a hub to monitor their 
needs and to ensure that interim food parcels were delivered where required 
until the Government was able to establish its own central distribution 
network. This had been managed by a small team of Council officers who 
had worked with key partners, such as the Priory Shopping Centre, to create 
a depot and facilities for sending out essential supplies to residents in need. 
The hub dealt with any issues arising from the Government scheme and to 
provide advice to vulnerable people in need of social contact support.  
 
The Council then extended the circle of care and support to people who, 
whilst not designated as being in need of shielding by the NHS, 
nevertheless were vulnerable or facing a genuine food emergency and did 
not have access to family, friends or other support networks. The Council 
had also established Dartford Together, an online platform which had also 
proved a very successful means of communication and had been well 
received, and reconfigured Customer Services to make it easier for people 
to make contact by telephone. Finally support was extended to the wider 
community. In order to ensure that all residents were aware of the support 
available to them, and that nobody in need was overlooked, a postcard was 
sent to every Dartford household (47,000) and a dedicated hotline was set 
up to take calls. After the launch of the hotline the Council received 279 calls 
in the first few days from which it had identified 69 people in need of further 
assistance. In addition to delivering food and medical supplies to the 
vulnerable the Council worked closely with other key partners, including two 
local foodbanks to which it had donated £2,500 each. The Council continued 
to work with established community partners and also with new partners 
such as The Priory Shopping Centre, Dartford Rugby Club and the 
contractors working on the Acacia Hall project. Referrals had also been 
made to the NHS Volunteer Responders, mental health services, the Kent 
Support and Assistance Services and the Citizens Advice Service. The 
Council had also opened up a list of community volunteers and been 
reassured by the large number of people who had come forward. The 
Chairman thanked the volunteers for their support which had emboldened 
the Council to take forward more services in the knowledge that there was a 
core base of support already in place in the community.  He also thanked 
the other community and neighbourhood groups that had sprung into action 
delivering a variety of voluntary schemes across the Borough. Although the 
demand for support was reducing since the peak of the crisis he undertook 
that support would continue for those who still required it, including the 
delivery of ‘recovery boxes’, and that nobody would be abandoned. 
 
At the same time as meeting these needs the Council had endeavoured to 
deliver its normal services. There had been a significant increase in demand 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 

4 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

for some services, especially Housing and Environmental Health. This had 
included the provision of accommodation for rough sleepers, an increase in 
homelessness cases, an increase in neighbour disputes, increased levels of 
anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance in some areas. The Council’s 
contractors, including Urbaser and Breyer, had continued to deliver 
essential services superbly well and the Council would work with them to 
provide the necessary financial and logistical support to ensure that service 
levels remained very high.   
  
Turning to business support, the Council recognised the link between a 
successful local economy and the health and social wellbeing of the 
Borough’s residents. The Council recognised that local businesses were the 
lifeblood of the town, providing wealth, employment and innovation and had 
been working hard to support the local business community. Business rate 
reliefs of £58.5m had been introduced for 700 leisure, hospitality and retail 
businesses within the Borough and grants of £11.2m had been paid to 900 
local businesses qualifying for the Government’s business grants. This 
represented over 80% of the total grant monies due to qualifying 
businesses. The Council had also made every effort to contact businesses 
that had not already applied for the grant. On 1 May 2020, the Government 
had announced new support for small businesses that were not eligible for 
other COVID-19 grants but have high fixed property-related costs, which 
would be administered by local councils. A separate report appeared on the 
new grant scheme later in the agenda, but it was intended to make the 
application process as simple as possible and to begin making grants by 
early June. The Council had also launched Dartford Back in Business, a 
publicity and promotional platform to help support and market local 
businesses and encouraged residents to shop and trade locally. The 
Government had announced that more shops could open from 15th June 
and the Council would be working to ensure that this could be done safely 
and properly so that the High Street and market could begin to trade again. 
The Council had also ensured that, where possible, events continued to be 
held online such as St Georges Day and the launch of Dartford Pride. 
 
The Council had reviewed its democratic and governance processes to 
ensure that sound governance and stewardship could continue. 
Arrangements had been made for essential meetings to be held virtually and 
publicly accessible on YouTube. Although the Cabinet had not met formally 
for two months there had been weekly informal Cabinet briefings, which had 
included senior councillors from the other political groups on the Council. 
Some meetings, such as the Annual Council meeting had had to be 
postponed until they could be held safely, and although meetings would be 
held virtually, there would be a return to holding physical meetings as soon 
as practicable. This would be a key test for civic recovery. 
 
The Chairman looked to the weeks ahead and the recovery from the current 
emergency. He recognised that this had been a stressful time for residents 
and praised their resilience and spirit in dealing with the many challenges. 
Although the emergency had had appalling consequences for too many 
people the community had responded strongly with many communal 
actions, goodwill and acts of kindness and it was vital to take forward the 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 
 

5 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

good things that had arisen in response to ensure that the community that 
emerged from the crisis was better than the one that it replaced. The 
Council’s role in ensuring this objective was to provide leadership and help. 
He recognised that local lives had been lost and in moving forward it was 
important not to forget them. He announced that a special garden would be 
created in the town as a tribute and remembrance. He thanked the many 
people who had sent messages of appreciation for the Council’s 
endeavours and said that this had meant a lot to staff and contractors who 
had continued to provide key services.  Finally he paid tribute to the NHS 
staff, health professionals, shop workers, delivery services and other key 
workers, including the Council’s staff, for all their efforts during the crisis and 
the local community for the way that it had responded.   
 
The Chairman asked officers whether the re-opening of household waste re-
cycling centres had had any adverse impact on waste collection and the 
Strategic Director (External Services) confirmed that this had gone well with 
the waste and recycling centre at Pepperhill prioritising the Council’s waste 
collection freighters. 
 
The Chairman sought clarification on the distribution of funding to local 
businesses and how quickly funding from the new Local Authority 
Discretionary Grants fund might be made available to local businesses. The 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) confirmed that payments of  £11.7M of 
COVID-19 business rates funding had been made to 941 businesses 
representing c.84% of the total grant available. Every effort was being made 
to encourage applications from the remaining eligible businesses and in 
some cases businesses were in the process of supplying necessary 
information to qualify for the grant. The arrangements for the new 
discretionary scheme were well advanced, application forms had been 
designed and the details of the scheme were close to completion. It was 
anticipated that the first grants could be made in early June.  
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Finance updated the Cabinet on the 
Council’s financial position. He explained that no financial constraints had 
been placed on the Council’s response to the emergency and that lack of 
finance had not stood in the way of ‘doing the right thing’. He commended 
the work of the Council’s Financial Services Team in providing the 
necessary information and reports to obtain further funding from the 
Government. The initial allocation of Government grant to the Council to 
meet additional costs had been £47,000 but due to the work of officers the 
amount allocated in a second tranche of funding had risen to £1.1M. He also 
commended the work of the Council’s shared service Revenues and 
Benefits Team which had dealt with over 11,000 calls in the initial weeks 
from those struggling with payment and was dealing with these on a case by 
case basis taking measures to ameliorate the impact, such as deferring 
payment instalments and administering additional relief from the 
Government’s Hardship Fund to all recipients of Council Tax Support.  
There were currently 1,800 people on deferred Council Tax payment 
arrangements amounting to £0.5M of income that the Council should have 
received so far this year. Currently the Council had experienced a shortfall 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 

6 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

of 7% in its income compared to the same time last year. The Council had 
also paid out £58M in business rate relief and would see lower returns on its 
investment income due to lower interest rates and the lower amount of 
income being collected. 
 
The Strategic Director (Internal Services) confirmed that although £58M had 
been paid out in business rate relief this could be claimed back from the 
Government via a section 31 grant which would be paid to the Council in 
monthly instalments. The Government had also deferred the payment of its 
50% share of Business Rates for three months which would partly offset the 
loss but that the Council would still lose income from investments. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members that the Council was better placed 
financially than most authorities because of the robust approach it had taken 
to financial management and the stewardship of resources whilst also 
delivering first rate services and facilities for local residents. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Waste & Environment recorded his 
appreciation for the help provided to him by Council staff. The Chairman re-
iterated the way in which staff had responded to the many difficulties thrown 
up during the crisis and recognised the additional stresses that these could 
involve. He stressed the importance that the Council attached to the health 
and wellbeing of staff and the support being made available in this respect. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Community Safety asked whether the 
reopening of the waste collection centres had resulted in any reduction in 
fly-tipping and also for an update on arrangements for parking services. 
 
The Strategic Director (External Services) advised Members that as the 
volume of fly-tipping tended to be related to seasonal factors the re-opening 
of the facilities had not resulted in a reduction of fly-tipping, which was 
currently at the volumes normally experienced at this time of year. Parking 
enforcement arrangements were currently suspended but would gradually 
be reintroduced as lock-down restrictions eased in the coming month. 
Parking enforcement in Residents’ Permit areas could be reintroduced in the 
next couple of weeks if demand grew as more people returned to work and 
waiting and unloading restrictions would also be enforced as the town centre 
reopened. Charging for town centre car parks would be the last to be 
reactivated and only when parking began to return to more normal levels 
and it became difficult for shoppers to park. The re-introduction of 
enforcement and charging regimes would be clearly communicated to the 
public and it was likely that enforcement would initially be on an advisory 
basis rather than through the immediate use of penalty charges. The 
Council was likely to be one of the last in Kent to re-introduce charging. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members of the vital work carried out by charities 
throughout the crisis and that many charities had been badly hit financially. 
He pledged Council support and funding moving forward for local charities. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Arts & Culture commended Council staff for 
their work in delivering supplies and medicines to residents and reminded 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 
 

7 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

anyone that still required help with filling prescriptions that the Council’s 
team could still assist with this. 
 
The Chairman reminded the Cabinet that the members of CAPB had been 
given the opportunity to raise any issues on the agenda that they wished to 
draw to the Cabinet’s attention. The Deputy Shadow Leader of the Council 
had asked Cabinet to consider submitting a report to the General Assembly 
of the Council on the Council’s Response to the Pandemic so that it could 
be discussed by all members of the Council. The Chairman reminded 
Members that such an opportunity already existed by the mechanism of 
reserving Cabinet minutes for debate and through the Scrutiny call-down 
process. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members that help was still available for the public 
by calling 01322 343244.      
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That Cabinet note the contents of the report. 
 
 

110. HOUSING REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE POLICY 2020  
 
The Cabinet considered a report which outlined proposed changes to the 
Housing Repairs and Maintenance Policy as a result of legislative or 
operational changes made since the policy was first introduced in 2014. The 
policy had been reviewed to incorporate these changes, to provide greater 
clarity and clearly set out the respective responsibilities of Tenants and 
Leaseholders. Internal stakeholders and the Dartford Tenants and 
Leaseholders Forum had been consulted on the new policy which had been 
introduced to coincide with the new repairs and maintenance contract which 
began on 1st April 2020.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the draft Housing Repairs and Maintenance Policy, attached at Appendix 
A to the report, be approved.  
 

111. LOCAL AUTHORITY DISCRETIONARY GRANT FUND FOR BUSINESSES  
 
The Cabinet considered a report which provided details of the new Local 
Authority Discretionary Grants Fund, an additional fund created by the 
Government aimed at small businesses which were not eligible for funding 
under the Small Business Grant Fund and the Retail, Leisure and Hospitality 
Fund. Local authorities would be responsible for administering the fund and to 
establish the details for a local scheme to supplement the national criteria, 
thereby allowing local authorities to support and prioritise according to local 
circumstances. It was anticipated that the Council’s allocation of funding for 
this scheme would be £680,500.  Local authorities could disburse grants of up 
to £25,000 but the Government expected grants of under £10,000 to be more 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 

8 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

prevalent. It was anticipated that there would be significant demand for 
funding from local businesses and important that a local scheme was 
established as soon as possible in order to have the scheme up and running 
and grants being made in early June.  
 
The Chairman reminded Cabinet that the criteria and eligibility for the initial 
Government grant schemes had been prescriptive and that the application of 
the schemes had therefore been fairly straightforward. This was not the case 
with the new Discretionary Grant Fund where both eligibility and the level of 
grant made were not prescribed. Whilst the Government had issued 
guidelines on the types of organisations that it envisaged would be eligible it 
had allowed much more local discretion. It was anticipated that there would be 
significant take up of the new scheme and that it would be more difficult to 
administer. He was also aware that applicants might be reliant on their 
accountants to provide some of the information required to support their 
applications, which could result in additional delays, and wanted the scheme 
to be as flexible as possible in terms of process and the setting of deadlines 
for the submission of information to ensure that nobody was deterred from 
applying and that additional time should be allowed for the provision of 
information if necessary. He expected that given the level of demand most of 
the grants would be relatively small and this should be taken into account 
when determining the amount of supporting evidence required.  
 
The Strategic Director (Internal Services) confirmed that whilst the 
Government had listed the sorts of businesses that could be eligible, the list 
was not exhaustive and that there was considerable flexibility. The aim was to 
make the application process as simple as possible and to have it up and 
running by early June.   
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Cabinet notes the contents of the report; and 
 

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Strategic Director (Internal 
Services) to agree details of the Council’s Local Authority Discretionary 
Grants Fund, in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the 
Lead Member for Business and Enterprise.  

 
112. STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING - PHASE 4 OF THE NORTHFLEET 

WEST SUB-STATION DEVELOPMENT  
 
The Cabinet considered a report which proposed two new road names for 
Phase 4 of the Northfleet West Sub Station development, consisting of flats 
and houses on Ackers Drive and Emmeline Avenue. The proposed names for 
the new roads had links with the existing road names and had been subject to 
consultation with Members, Emergency Services, Royal Mail and the 
developers. The outcome of that consultation was detailed in the report. The 
names complied with the Council’s policy on Street Naming and suitable 
suffixes would be chosen once the final road names had been approved. 
 
 

Page 8Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
THURSDAY 28 MAY 2020 

 
 

9 

CHAIRMAN’S 

INITIALS 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That Christabel and Wymer be approved as the two new road names for 
Phase 4 of the Northfleet West Sub Station development. 
 

113. REPORT OF DELEGATED ACTIONS TAKEN UNDER STANDING ORDER 
38  
 
The Cabinet considered a report which detailed the delegated actions taken 
under Standing Order 38(2)(a) by the relevant Director in consultation with the 
Cabinet Chairman during the COVID-19 national public health emergency. 
 
The Chairman explained that there were a larger number of delegated actions 
than usual due to the need to take action urgently in response to the public 
health emergency which could not wait for action by the relevant Council 
committee.  
 
The Strategic Director (External Services) confirmed that the SO38 delegated 
actions process was only being used where it was necessary to take urgent 
action which could not wait for committee approval or to deal with very routine 
matters which would not normally be formally reported to committee.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the Cabinet note the actions taken by the Directors, in consultation with 
the Chairman of the Cabinet, under Standing Order 38(2)(a), outlined in the 
Appendices to the report and for the reasons stated. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 2.33 pm 
 

  
 
 

Councillor J A Kite, MBE 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10Agenda Item 3



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT OF COVID 19  
 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of the potential financial impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on 

the 2020/21 General Fund, Capital and HRA budgets due to reduced income or 
increased expenditure. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1  That Members note the report and agree the proposed funding of the initial 
shortfall identified. 

2.2 That members note the possible implications for the collection fund and the 
possible impact on next year’s general fund position.  

2.3 That Members note monitoring and reporting will continue as the year progresses. 

 
3. Background  

 
3.1. This paper provides an early indication of what the financial implications 

of COVID-19 might be on the Council for 2020/21 based on the 
information available at the time of writing. 

3.2. The core assumption used in this report is that COVID-19 will cause 
significant disruption to ‘daily’ income flows for the period April to July for 
items such as parking and building control income but also projects 
some of the disruption to continue further (such as leisure provision) and 
anticipates some sustained reduction in economic activity. 

3.3. The report considers areas where additional expenditure has been 
necessary in response to COVID-19 and projects future costs for the 
financial year. 

4. Impact on Income 
 

4.1. The necessary closures and changes to service as a result of Covid 19 
have had a significant impact on income received in the first few months 
of the year and going forward. The table below shows income streams 
that are expected to be impacted as a result of the crisis including the 
current estimates of reductions in income for the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
Income Stream £ Basis of Assumption (main elements) 

Leisure 605,500 Full year reduction in management fee 

Markets 177,500 Full year loss of income 

Other Fees and Charges 123,500 April to July Loss with some ongoing effect 

Parking 350,000 April to June Loss with some ongoing effect 

Planning & 

Development 
418,000 

Ongoing effect (equivalent to 1/3 loss of 

income) 

Commercial/Community 

Rents 
420,000 

Full year effect for deferred/ overdue rents 

  2,094,500   

 
4.2. The highest impact on income is anticipated to be the current closure 

and subsequent limited opening of Fairfield Leisure Centre. The contract 
provides for a management fee to be paid from the operator to the 
Council each year. However, due to the financial impact of the closure 
and the social distancing measures that will need to be employed once 
the centre is re-opened, it is anticipated that there will be no 
management fee income in 2020/21. The Council is also in discussions 
with the leisure provider on the further financial support that they are 
requesting as per the terms of the leisure contract. 
 

4.3. Other significant areas identified are parking, and planning and 
development. The parking income loss is due to lockdown measures and 
a slowdown in income whilst confidence builds during the recovery 
period. 
 

4.4. Planning and development income reductions are based on future 
projections and the loss is less certain at this stage.  The planning 
element of income was strong for the first two months of the year despite 
the lockdown but effects on confidence are thought likely to reduce 
income as the year progresses. In contrast, building control income has 
been weak initially as works have stalled but is expected to pick up, albeit 
at lower levels than initially anticipated.  
 

4.5. Interest Income has not been included above as it is too early in the year 
to make a confident projection. Pooled Funds’ Investments have lost a 
significant amount of their value due to the impact of Covid 19 and it is 
likely that future fund dividends will be affected by this reduction and 
market conditions.  The general fund interest budget is £1.2m. Interest 
income is expected to be significantly lower in 2020/21 than in previous 
years where the budget has been overachieved.  
 

4.6. The Council has budgets of around £943,000 for general fund rental 
income. Deferrals have been offered to six leaseholders and there is 
some latency of payment on other leases.  If this continues and deferrals 
result in non-payment, the resulting loss of income is estimated at 
around £420,000 
 

4.7. The Council also has various income sources within the HRA. Rent 
arrears have increased compared to the last year by around £60,000. It 
is difficult to know at this stage how much of the increase is due to Covid 

Page 12Agenda Item 6



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
-19 pressures. Additionally, there are some late commercial rents which 
could result in an additional bad debt provision of £43,000 if the trend 
continues. 
 
 

5. Additional Expenditure  
 

5.1. The Council has been incurring some additional general fund costs as a 
result of the crisis. The areas of cost are outlined in the following table 
including current estimates going forward and key assumptions. 

 

Type of General Fund 

Expenditure £ Assumptions 

Additional Cleaning 
                        

65,000  
Increased cleaning for rest of 

financial year 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
                        

91,000  Costs to date projected forward 

Homelessness 
                      

230,000  
Continuing costs for additional 

support until autumn 

Emergency Food Support 
                        

40,000  Costs to date projected forward 

Contractual/Supplier Support 
                      

605,000  Latest estimates for year 

Miscellaneous 
                        

19,000  Costs to date projected forward 

Recovery Costs 50,000  Block estimate of recovery costs  

Total 
                        

1,100,000   

 

5.2. On the 20 March 2020 the government published Procurement Policy 
Note 02/20: Supplier relief due to COVID-19. This note explained how 
support should be given to Council contractors due to Covid 19 to ensure 
service continuity during and after the current coronavirus. Accordingly, 
appropriate support has been discussed and offered to contractors 
where the impact of Covid 19 has been significant and Council support 
has been deemed to be reasonable. Support can take the form of 
advances, additional payments to support the services or payments 
related to contractual negotiation. The current estimate of general fund 
supplier support is expected to be in the region of £605,000, which 
includes additional cost support to the leisure, waste and theatre 
providers. 
 

5.3. In March 2020 the government provided limited funding for councils to 
house rough sleepers in order to support self-isolation during the 
lockdown.  Specific funding has stopped but there remains an 
expectation from government that councils continue to provide 
accommodation for this group during the following months. The current 
estimate of the costs of continued support until autumn is £230,000. 
 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
5.4. The Council is responsible for supporting those who, whilst not 

designated as being in need of shielding by the NHS, nevertheless are 
vulnerable or are facing a genuine food emergency. A community hub 
has been set up, resourced by Council staff, to provide this support. 
Since the start of the hub to 3 June 2020, 472 food parcels have been 
delivered to those in a food emergency who have no friends or family 
supporting them. It is difficult to know when this support will no longer be 
required, but it is estimated that the cost of the food parcels will be in the 
region of £40,000. 
 

5.5. In order to ensure a safe working environment for those staff who are 
unable to work from home during the pandemic, an enhanced cleaning 
regime has been introduced at the Civic Centre. This includes bringing 
in a temporary cleaning supervisor and re-deploying the public 
convenience contractor to support the in-house cleaners. In addition, an 
electro static treatment is being undertaken in the communal areas on a 
weekly basis. The estimated cost of these measures is £65,000. 
 

5.6. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) will also need to be provided for 
those staff undertaking site visits or enforcement activity. The cost of this 
is expected to be £91,000. 
 

5.7. In addition to the General Fund costs, the HRA is expected to incur 
around £124,000 of additional costs including supplier support, cleaning 
and PPE.  
 

5.8. Currently the estimated costs of delays and safer workspace 
arrangements for the Council’s capital projects is estimated at around 
£197,000 for the capital programme but there are ongoing discussions 
with contractors. At this stage it is not necessary to stop any capital 
projects as a result of the pandemic. 

 

6. Expenditure Reductions 
 

6.1. Some activities have been limited or cancelled in respect of the Covid-
19 measures. This will achieve some limited savings and these will be 
reflected in the usual budget monitoring reports as relevant. 
 

7. The Collection Fund 
 

7.1. As a billing authority the Council has responsibility for collecting both 
Council Tax and Business Rates on behalf of itself and other preceptors.  
 

7.2. As part of its measures to support those businesses affected by Covid 
19, the government announced expanded business rates relief for 
occupied retail, leisure and hospitality properties in the year 2020/21. 
Business rate reliefs of £58.5m have now been applied to nearly 700 
leisure, hospitality and retail businesses within the Borough. The effect 
of these reliefs means that the rates that would have been received will 

Page 14Agenda Item 6



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
be paid by government grant instead. This equates to around 65% of 
business rates normally collected. 
 

7.3. Remaining rates, net of other discounts of around £32m, are due to be 
collected over the year. Deferral arrangements have been made in 
respect of 6% of due instalments and late payments in respect of 37%. 
 

7.4. If the deferrals and missed payments convert to non-payment the  
provisions for bad debts will need revising and future distributions of the 
collection fund will be reduced with the Council losing on 20% of the 
income and respective pooling gains. 
 

7.5. The Council collects around £71.58m in Council tax on behalf of 
preceptors with most of the income distributed to Kent County Council 
with around 10% being retained by the Council. 
 

7.6. The Council has received a sum of £897,000 from the government’s 
Hardship Fund. This fund delivers additional relief to those in receipt of 
local council tax support. All claimants of council tax support will see their 
council tax bills reduce by £150 for 2020/21. The Council will also have 
to pay for new Council Tax Support cases via the Collection Fund. Cost 
of these cases has increased to date by around £350,000 a year. 
Payment failure has occurred for around £1m of council tax payments in 
the first two months and deferral arrangements of around £260,000 per 
month were agreed for the first two months. 
 

7.7. The Council only takes around 10% of the Collection Fund surplus or 
deficit into its accounts but given the above figures, it is possible that a 
significant deficit may occur which would be accounted for in 2021/22. 
 

7.8. The Collection Fund also has a cash flow impact on the Council as it 
pays out precepts on estimates made before the current situation and 
receives income as it is paid. The Council’s cashflow modelling has 
shown that it has managed the reduced income flows over the period. 
This has been helped by government supporting cash flows in respect 
of the funding of business rate grants.  
 
 

8. Funding 
 

8.1. Government funding of £1,125,220 has been received for 2020/21 
Coronavirus costs. As it stands this covers the additional direct spending 
but not the loss of income or collection fund losses.  
 

8.2. Local authorities are submitting regular data to government on costs and 
loss of income as the government continues to review the funding offer.  
 

8.3. The Council Budget includes a contribution to general fund reserves of 
£6.2m in 2020/21. It is proposed that this reserve contribution is 
decreased in year by around £2m to cover the gap between the 
estimated costs/loss of income and government funding received. 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

8.4. The Council has sufficient reserve levels and will seek to balance 
earmarked reserve levels so that reserves set aside to offset unexpected 
losses are utilised and reserves set aside for infrastructure investment 
and the Medium Term Financial Plan are protected. 
 

8.5. Housing Revenue Account and Capital costs will be funded form existing 
budgets in the first instance with future monitoring reports identifying any 
additional funding needs.    

 
9. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Council Performing Strongly Theme  
 
10. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 

Financial Implications As included throughout report 

Legal Implications 

 

None 

 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative 
Implications 

None  

Risk Assessment The forecasts included will be updated as 
matters progress. They include an element of 
uncertainty and assumptions are shown. 
Regular reporting to officers and Members will 
continue. 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 

 Not applicable 
 
 
7. Appendices 
 

None. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author 
 
 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Tim Sams 

(01322) 343148 
Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services 

 

 

Page 16Agenda Item 6



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD1  

ANNUAL TREASURY REPORT 2019/2020 
 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of the outturn position (subject to audit) of the Council’s 

investments and borrowing for the 2019/2020 financial year. 
 

1.2 To inform Cabinet of the outturn position of the Council’s treasury 
indicators. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That Members note the outturn for the Council’s treasury management 

operations for 2019/2020. 
 

2.2 That Members note the outturn for the Council’s treasury indicators. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1 The CIPFA definition of Treasury Management is “the management of the 

Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking and its capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.  
 

The Treasury Management Code requires public sector authorities to determine 

an annual Treasury Management Strategy and as a minimum, formally report on 

their treasury activities and arrangements to Cabinet mid-year and after the year-

end.  These reports enable those tasked with implementing policies and 

undertaking transactions to demonstrate they have properly fulfilled their 

responsibilities, and enable those with ultimate responsibility/governance of the 

treasury management function to scrutinise and assess its effectiveness and 

compliance with policies and objectives.      

 

Overall responsibility for treasury management remains with the Council.  No 

treasury management activity is without risk; the effective identification and 

management of risk are integral to the Council’s treasury management 

objectives.   

 

3.2 This report:  
a) Is prepared in accordance with the latest CIPFA Treasury Management Code 

of Practice and the Prudential Code.  The Treasury Strategy Statement for 

2019/2020 was adopted at the GAC meeting of 25 February 2019. The 2017 

Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to provide a Capital 

Page 17 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD2  

Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council covering capital 

expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments.  

The Council’s Capital Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was 

approved by full Council on 25 February 2019. 

 
b)  presents details of the investment activity – both on internally and externally 
managed funds;  

 
c)  details the current position on the debt incurred in March 2012 for Housing 
Self Financing Reform 

 
      d)  reports on the risk implications of treasury decisions and transactions; 

 
e)  gives details of the outturn position on treasury management transactions in 
2019/2020; 

 
       f) confirms compliance with treasury limits and treasury Indicators. 
 

This report is to Cabinet and will, in addition, be reviewed by the Treasury 

Management Panel which is responsible for scrutiny of the Treasury 

Management function.  

 
3.3  Economic Background for 2019/2020 

 
The UK’s exit from the European Union and future trading arrangements, had 
remained one of the major influences on the UK economy and sentiment during 
2019/20.  The 29th March 2019 Brexit deadline was extended to 12th April, then 
to 31st October and finally to 31st January 2020. Politics played a major role in 
financial markets over the period as the UK’s tenuous progress negotiating its 
exit from the European Union together with its future trading arrangements drove 
volatility, particularly in foreign exchange markets. The outcome of December’s 
General Election removed a lot of the uncertainty and looked to provide a 
‘bounce’ to confidence and activity. 
 
The headline rate of UK Consumer Price Inflation fell to 1.7% year on year in 
February, below the Bank of England’s target of 2%. Labour market data 
remained positive. The ILO unemployment rate was 3.9% in the three months to 
January 2020 while the employment rate hit a record high of 76.5%. The average 
annual growth rate for pay excluding bonuses was 3.1% in January 2020 and 
the same when bonuses were included, providing some evidence that a 
shortage of labour had been supporting wages. 
 
GDP growth in quarter 4 was reported as flat by the Office for National Statistics 
and service sector growth slowed and production and construction activity 
contracted on the back of what at the time were concerns over the impact of 

Page 18Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD3  

global trade tensions on economic activity. The annual rate of GDP growth 
remained below trend at 1.1%. 
 
The coronavirus swiftly changed everything. COVID-19, which had first 
appeared in China in December 2019, started spreading across the globe 
causing plummeting sentiment and falls in financial markets not seen since the 
Global Financial Crisis as part of a flight to quality into sovereign debt and other 
perceived ‘safe’ assets.  
 
In response to the spread of the virus and sharp increase in those infected, the 
government enforced lockdowns, central banks and governments around the 
world cut interest rates and introduced massive stimulus packages in an attempt 
to reduce some of the negative economic impact to domestic and global growth. 
 
The Bank of England which had held policy rates steady at 0.75% through most 
of 2019/20, moved in March to cut rates to 0.25% from 0.75% and then swiftly 
thereafter brought them down further to the record low of 0.1%. In conjunction 
with these cuts, the UK government introduced a number of measures to help 
businesses and households impacted by a series of ever-tightening social 
restrictions, culminating in pretty much the entire lockdown of the UK. 
 
The US economy grew at an annualised rate of 2.1% in quarter 4 2019. After 
escalating trade wars and a protracted standoff, the signing of phase 1 of the 
trade agreement between the US and China in January was initially positive for 
both economies, but COVID-19 severely impacted sentiment and production in 
both countries. Against a slowing economic outlook, the US Federal Reserve 
began cutting rates in August. Following a series of five cuts, the largest of which 
were in March 2020, the Fed Funds rate fell from 2.5% to a range of 0%-0.25%. 
The US government also unleashed a raft of COVID-19 related measures and 
support for its economy including a $2 trillion fiscal stimulus package. With 
interest rates already on (or below) the floor, the European Central Bank held its 
base rate at 0% and deposit rate at -0.5%. 
 
Financial markets: Financial markets sold off sharply as the impact from the 
coronavirus worsened. After starting positively in 2020, the FTSE 100 fell over 
30% in its worst point with stock markets in other countries seeing similar huge 
falls. In March, sterling touched its lowest level against the dollar since 1985. 
The measures implemented by central banks and governments helped restore 
some confidence and financial markets have rebounded in recent weeks but 
remain extremely volatile. The flight to quality caused gilt yields to fall 
substantially. 
 
Since the start of the calendar year 2020, the yield on 2-year US treasuries had 
fallen and German bund yields remain negative. 
 
Credit review: In quarter four 2019, Fitch affirmed the UK’s AA sovereign rating, 
removed it from rating watch negative and assigned a negative outlook. Fitch 
then affirmed UK banks’ long term ratings, removed the rating watch negative 

Page 19 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD4  

and assigned a stable outlook. Standard & Poor’s also affirmed the UK sovereign 
AA rating and revised the outlook from stable to negative. The Bank of England 
announced its latest stress test results for the main seven UK banking groups. 
All seven passed on both a common equity tier 1 (CET1) ratio and a leverage 
ratio basis. Under the test scenario the banks’ aggregate level CET1 capital 
would remain twice their level before the 2008 financial crisis. 
 
After remaining flat in January and February and between a range of 30-55bps, 
Credit Default Swap spreads rose sharply in March as the potential impact of the 
coronavirus on bank balance sheets gave cause for concern. Spreads declined 
in late March and through to mid-April but remain above their initial 2020 levels. 
 
While the UK and non-UK banks on the Arlingclose counterparty list remain in a 
strong and well capitalised position, the duration advice on all these banks was 
cut to 35 days in mid-March.  The Council kept investments directly in banks to 
a minimum during 2019/20, instead investing in Money Market Funds where the 
underlying investments are highly diversified, and has had no investments 
directly with banks since 21st February 2020. 

 

3.4 The Council’s Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020: 
 
On 31st March 2020, the Council had investments (net of internal borrowing) of 
£126.34m arising from its net cash flow position. The underlying need to borrow 
for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 
while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available 
for investment.  These factors are summarised in Table 1 below. 
 
Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary 
 

 31.03.20 
Actual £m 

General Fund CFR 1.21 

HRA CFR 51.41 

Total CFR 52.62 

External borrowing 51.41 

Internal (over) borrowing 1.21 

Less: General Reserve 3.00 

           HRA Balances 13.80 

           Earmarked/capital reserves 77.66 

Less: Working capital and collection fund balances 31.88 

Investments net of internal borrowing 126.34 

 
The Council entered into a new waste collection contract in July 2019 which 
includes an embedded lease for the use of the refuse collection vehicles.  The 
Council has to account for this lease by recognising the value of the lease as an 
asset and will make minimum revenue provision each year of the lease until it is 

Page 20Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD5  

extinguished.  The general fund CFR has therefore risen this year recognising 
the balance of the lease asset. 
 
The treasury management position at 31st March 2020 and the change during 
the year is shown in Table 2 below. 
 
Table 2: Treasury Management Summary 
 

 31st March 
2019 

£m 

31st March 
2020 

£m 

Short term borrowing (amounts falling due 
within one year) 

(4.44) (4.44) 

Long-term borrowing (51.41) (46.96) 

Total Borrowing (55.85) (51.41) 

Long-term investments 61.84 57.80 

Short-term investments 34.11 27.79 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 13.16 40.75 

Total Investments 109.11 126.34 

Year End Net Treasury Position  53.26 74.93 
NB:  The figures in the table above are from the balance sheet in the Council’s statement 
of accounts, but adjusted to exclude operational cash, accrued interest and other 
accounting adjustments. 

 

3.5   Debt Portfolio as at 31st March 2020 

The Council has now had a debt portfolio for eight full financial years, the debt 

having been taken on as a result of the Housing Self Financing regime on 28th 

March 2012. The total interest paid in 2019/20 was £1.45m; this figure is 

adjusted in the accounts to reflect the actual interest due for the financial year. 

The adjusted interest figure is £1.44m. The movement in the debt is shown in 

the table below: 

 

Table 3: Borrowing position 

 

` Balance 
on 

31.03.19 
£m 

Debt 
repaid 

 
£m 

Balance 
on 

31.03.20 
£m 

Long Term Borrowing (Maturity fixed 

rate Loans) 

5.00 0 5.00 

Long Term Borrowing  (EIP fixed rate 

Loans) 

50.85 (4.44) 46.41 

Total Borrowing* 55.85 (4.44) 51.41 

Average Rate % / Life (yrs) 2.47% /  
12.62 yrs 

 2.49% /  
12.28 yrs 

Page 21 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD6  

 
Note*:  The value of Long term borrowing that falls due within one year is re-defined at year end 
as short term borrowing. All the short- and long-term borrowing in the table above relate to loans 
for HRA self-financing.   

  
The Council did not enter into any new long term borrowing during 2019/20. 

Should it be required to borrow new loans, the Council has been eligible to apply 

for new loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) at the PWLB Certainty 

Rate (0.2% below the PWLB standard rate).   This eligibility is for a 12 month 

period from 1st November 2019.   

 

The Council’s strategy permits temporary borrowing to meet overnight or short-

term cashflow deficits and the prudent and efficient management of the Council’s 

treasury position. There was no temporary borrowing during 2019/2020. 

 

Borrowing update: On 9th October 2019 the PWLB raised the cost of certainty 

rate borrowing by 1% to 1.8% above UK gilt yields as HM Treasury was 

concerned about the overall level of local authority debt. PWLB borrowing 

remains available but the margin of 180bps above gilt yields appears relatively 

very expensive. Market alternatives are available and new products will be 

developed; however the financial strength of individual authorities will be 

scrutinised by investors and commercial lenders. 

 

The Chancellor’s March 2020 Budget statement included significant changes to 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) policy and launched a wide-ranging 

consultation on the PWLB’s future direction. Announcements included a 

reduction in the margin on new HRA loans to 0.80% above equivalent gilt yields, 

(the value of this discount is 1% below the rate at which the authority usually 

borrows from the PWLB), available from 12th March 2020 and £1.15bn of 

additional “infrastructure rate” funding at gilt yields plus 0.60% to support specific 

local authority infrastructure projects for England, Scotland and Wales for which 

there is a bidding process. 

 

The consultation titled “Future Lending Terms” represents a frank, open and 

inclusive invitation, allowing key stakeholders to contribute to developing a 

system whereby PWLB loans can be made available at improved margins to 

support qualifying projects. It contains proposals on allowing authorities that are 

not involved in a “debt to yield” activity to borrow at lower rates as well as 

stopping local authorities using PWLB loans to buy commercial assets primarily 

for yield without impeding their ability to pursue their core policy objectives of 

service delivery, housing and regeneration. The consultation also broaches the 

Page 22Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD7  

possibility of slowing, or stopping, individual authorities from borrowing large 

sums in specific circumstances. 

 

The consultation closes at the end of July with implementation of the new lending 

terms expected in the latter part of this calendar year or financial year beginning 

2021/22.  

 
Other Debt Activity 
 
The Council entered into a new contract for waste and refuse collection in July 

2019. This contract includes the right to use and control specific assets, namely 

refuse collection vehicles.  Although not borrowing, the Council had to designate 

£1.43m of capital finance for the vehicles via an embedded finance lease. The 

lease runs for a period of 7 years and the Council will set aside MRP each year 

until this is extinguished.  The liability remaining as at 31st March 2020 is £1.21m. 

 
3.6 Investment Activity 
 
The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in 

advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During 2019/20 the 

Council’s investment balances have ranged between £112.3m and £165.7m.  

Table 4 below shows the year-end investment position and the total investments 

made and maturities/investments sold. 

 

 Table 4: Treasury Investment Position 
 

Investments Balance on 
31.03.19 

£m 

Investments 
made      

£m 

Maturities/ 
Investments 

sold £m 

Balance on 
31.03.20 

£m 

Short term investments  
Instant Access Deposit Accounts 

 
0.00 11.36 (11.36) 

 
0.00 

DMADF 0.00 23.00 (23.00) 0.00 

Money Market Funds 13.16 192.61 (165.02) 40.75 

External Pooled Funds1 95.95 7.00 (8.10) 85.59 

Total Investments 109.11 233.97 207.48 126.34 
1 External fund holdings are re-valued at year end and carried at Fair Value. 

 
Both the CIPFA code and government guidance require the Council to invest its 

funds prudently, and to have regard to security and liquidity of its investments 

before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  The Council’s objective when 

investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, 

minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving 

unsuitably low investment income. 

 

Page 23 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD8  

In furtherance of these objectives, and given the increasing risk and low returns 

from short-term unsecured bank investments, the Council continued to keep the 

majority of investments in diversified funds through the use of money market 

funds and externally managed pooled funds.  A small amount of investments 

were kept directly with banks in call accounts which were able to be recalled 

instantly if needed.  When cash balances were particularly high, the Council for 

a short time placed deposits with the UK government in the Debt Management 

Account Deposit Facility (DMADF).   The risk and return metrics are shown in 

the extract from Arlingclose’s quarterly benchmarking in table 5 below. 

 

Table 5: Investment Benchmarking – Treasury investments (managed in-house) 

 

 

Credit 

Score 

Credit 

Rating 

Bail-in 

Exposure 

WAM* 

(days) 

Rate of 

Return 

(income 

only) 

internally 

and 

externally 

managed 

funds 

31.03.2019 4.84 A+ 100% 1 2.15% 

31.03.2020 4.19 AA- 100% 1 2.01% 

Similar LAs 3.95 AA- 59% 53 1.55% 

All LAs 4.03 AA- 56% 20 1.23% 

 

The Council’s in-house investments generated a return of £0.28m at an average 

rate of return of 0.39%. 

 

£57.80m of the Council’s investments are held in externally managed strategic 

pooled bond, equity, multi-asset and property funds where short-term security 

and liquidity are lesser considerations, and the objectives instead are regular 

revenue income and long-term price stability.  These funds generated £2.45m 

income return and an unrealised capital loss of £9m at 31st March which reflected 

the depressed pricing of the underlying investments in a very volatile period for 

bonds and equities at the height of the coronavirus epidemic and the start of 

lockdowns. 

 

In a relatively short period since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the global 

economic fallout was sharp and large. Market reaction was extreme with large 

falls in equities, corporate bond markets and, to some extent, real estate echoing 

lockdown-induced paralysis and the uncharted challenges for governments, 

Page 24Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD9  

businesses and individuals. Volatility measured by the VIX index was almost as 

high as during the global financial crisis of 2008/9 and evidenced in plummeting 

equity prices and the widening of corporate bond spreads, very close to rivalling 

those twelve years ago. Gilt yields fell but credit spreads widened markedly 

reflecting the sharp deterioration in economic and credit conditions associated 

with a sudden stagnation in economies, so corporate bonds yields (comprised 

of the gilt yield plus the credit spread) rose and prices therefore fell.  

 

The Council is invested in bond, equity, multi-asset and property funds. The falls 

in the capital values of the underlying assets were reflected in the 31st March 

fund valuations with every fund registering negative capital returns over 12 

months to March. Despite decent income returns in 2019-20, most of these funds 

have posted negative total return over the one year period due to the capital 

component of total returns. The unrealised capital losses (the ‘drawdown’ as 

referred to by fund managers) in equity income funds at 31st March were 

especially large.   

 

These unrealised capital losses do not have an impact on the General Fund at 

this time as the Council is able to defer the funds’ fair value losses to the Pooled 

Investment Fund Adjustment Account until 2023/24. 

 

The capital valuation of these funds showed some improvement at 30th April as 

market tensions eased marginally, it is however very early days in this pandemic.  

With the global economic backdrop expected to remain very weak for a 

considerable period, higher volatility will remain a feature of bond and equity 

markets.  

  

Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for 

withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in 

meeting the Council’s objectives is regularly reviewed. Strategic fund 

investments are made in the knowledge that capital values will move both up 

and down on months, quarters and even years; but with the confidence that over 

a three to five year period total returns will exceed cash interest rates. In light of 

their performance over the medium-long term and the Council’s latest cash flow 

forecasts, investments in these funds has been maintained. 

 

Details of the in-house investments and externally managed funds held at 31st 

March 2020 are shown in Appendix A. 

 
 
 
 

Page 25 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD10  

3.7 Non-Treasury Investments 

 

The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code 

now covers all the financial assets of the Council as well as other non-financial 

assets which the Council holds primarily for financial return.  This is replicated in 

the Investment Guidance issued by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government’s (MHCLG), in which the definition of investments is further 

broadened to also include all such assets held partially for financial return. 

 

The Council held £10.15m of such investments in directly owned property.  These 

properties were purchased many years ago and not originally as commercial 

investments, but for the wider benefits of the Borough, including improving the 

area and for economic development.  The reason for the Council continuing to 

hold these properties is partially to make a profit and to receive income.  These 

properties therefore fall under the definition of commercial investments. These 

investments generated £0.66m income for the Council. A full list of the Council’s 

non-treasury investments is available at Appendix B. 

 

 
3.8 Budgeted Income and Outturn – General Fund 
 

The General Fund net budget for interest receivable in 2019/2020 was £0.65m 

with probable outturn reported in February as £2m.  The budget is after the 

statutory transfer of interest to other funds – mainly the Housing Revenue 

Account. The Council has achieved investment income of £3.01m which is 

broken down as follows: 

 

 2018/19 
Outturn 

 
£’000’s 

Interest receivable on internally managed funds 277 

Other Interest receivable 1 2 

In year gains on sale of externally managed fund  20 

In year loss on sale of externally managed fund (1) 

Dividends - externally managed funds 2,740 

 3,038 

Less: 
1) credit to the HRA (in    accordance with the detailed 
provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989),  
2) and other minor items 2 

 
(83) 

 
(3) 

General Fund Net Investment Income 2,952 

Page 26Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD11  

Transfers from the pooled investment fund account to general 

fund via MIRS: 

Prior year gains on sale of externally managed funds 

Prior year losses on sale of externally managed funds 

 

 

58 

(1) 

Total investment income 2019/20 3,009 

 
1  Interest is also received on other items e.g. car loans made to staff, default interest on late 

contractual payments 
2 Interest is payable on the Kidd Legacy Funds and the sums held for Leaseholders in respect 

of future liabilities. 

 

The interest budget has been exceeded for the year due to the strong income 

returns received from the externally managed pooled funds and from holding 

larger investment balances due to the sale of plots of land at the Bridge and 

Stone Lodge sites.  The externally managed pooled funds have performed well 

during the year resulting in large dividend payments, but there is no guarantee 

that future performance will follow this trend 

 

In particular, income for 2020/21 is likely to be significantly lower as the impact 

on the very weak economy from the effects of the COVID19 pandemic feed 

through into lower investment returns. The drop in Bank Rate from 0.75% to 

0.10% will have a direct impact on the return from cash instruments such as 

bank deposits and also instruments held by Money Market Funds and cash plus 

funds. Lower bond yields and the deferment or cuts in dividends by companies 

from regulatory pressure (for example, UK and European banks) or simply to 

conserve cash and liquidity against a very uncertain economic backdrop will 

result in lower income from the Council’s investments in bond, equity and multi-

asset funds.  Property funds will also not be immune to the economic downturn 

and its impact on rental income and its collection.  
 

3.9 Budgeted Income and Outturn – Housing Revenue Account 
 
 

 2019/2020 
Budget 

£’000 

2019/2020 
Outturn 

£’000 

Interest Receivable - Investment Income on 

cash flow balances¹ 
41 83 

Interest Payable – PWLB³ (1,344) (1,344) 

Net HRA position (1,303) (1,261) 

   

 ¹This item is credited to the HRA in accordance with the detailed provisions of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 – the corresponding contra entry is shown in the General 
Fund table above. 

 

Page 27 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD12  

³ This is the interest payable on the borrowing undertaken from the Public Works Loan Board 

(PWLB) under the Housing Self Financing regime and charged to the HRA in 2019/2020. Note 
that the actual interest paid to PWLB in 2019/2020 was £1.356m but this is apportioned to take 
into account the financial year for which the interest was due. 

 

 
3.10 Compliance 

 
 All treasury management activities undertaken during the year complied fully 
with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury 
Management Strategy.   
 
Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt 
is demonstrated in the table below: 
 
Debt limits in £m’s 
 

 2019/20 
Maximum 

31.03.20 
Actual 

2019/20 
Operational 
boundary  

2019/20 
authorised 
limit 

Complied? 

Borrowing 55.85 51.41 100 120 Yes 

Finance leases 1.21 1.21 15 20 Yes 

Total debt 57.06 52.62 115 140 Yes 

 
 Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is 
not significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to 
variations in cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure. The 
Council did not breach the operational boundary or authorised limit for borrowing 
during the year. 
 
Investment Limits in £m’s 
 

 2019/20 
Maximum 

31.03.20 
Actual 

2019/20 Limit Complied? 

Any single organisation, (except 
the UK Central Government and 
externally managed pooled 
funds) 

7.0 7.0 £7.5m each Yes 

UK Central Government 15.0  unlimited Yes 

Any group of organisations under 
the same ownership (excluding 
externally managed pooled 
funds) 

7.0 7.0 £7.5m per group Yes 

Any group of pooled funds under 
the same management 

19.2 18.9 
£25m per 
manager 

 
Yes 

Negotiable instruments held in a 
broker’s nominee account 

0 0 £25m per broker Yes 

Page 28Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD13  

Foreign countries 0 0 £10m per country Yes 

Registered Providers and 
registered social landlords 

0 0 £5m in total Yes 

Unsecured investments with 
Building Societies 

0 0 £5m in total Yes 

Loans to unrated corporates 0 0 £5m in total Yes 

Money Market Funds 

56.0 in 
total 

7.0 in a 
fund 

40.75 in 
total 

7.0 in a 
fund 

£65m in total, 
£7m per 

individual money 
market fund 

Yes 

Real estate investment trusts 0 0 £25m in total Yes 

 
 

3.11 Treasury Management Indicators 
  

The Council measures and manages its exposure to treasury management risks 

using the following indicators. 

 

Security:  The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit 

risk by monitoring the long-term credit rating and will aim for a weighted average 

long-term rating of ‘A’ for its in-house managed cash balances placed with credit 

rated banks and building societies and, as applicable, MMFs. 

 

 Target Actual 

Portfolio average credit rating (in-

house managed cash balances – 

value weighted) 

A AA- 

 
 

 

Liquidity:  The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to 

liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected 

payments within a rolling one month period, without additional borrowing. 

 

 Target 

Total cash available within 1 month £5m 

 
In 2019/20 the Council had at least £5m available within one month at all times. 

 

Interest Rate Exposures:  This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure 
to interest rate risk.  The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% 
rise or fall in interest rates will be: 

Page 29 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD14  

 
 

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that 
maturing loans and investments will be replaced at current rates.  The Council’s 
debt is at fixed rates of interest, maturing debt is not being replaced with new 
borrowing and will not be impacted by an increase in interest rates.  The Council 
will benefit from any increase in interest rates on its investments. 

 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing   

This indicator is to limit large concentrations of debt needing to be replaced at 

times of uncertainty over interest rates. It is designed to protect against 

excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in particular in 

the course of the next ten years.   

 

Maturity structure of 

fixed rate borrowing 

Lower 

Limit for 

2019/20 

% 

Upper 

Limit for 

2019/20 

% 

Actual 
Maturity % 

as at 
31/03/2020 

Actual 
Borrowing 

at 
31/03/2020 

£m 

under 12 months  0% 25% 8.64% 4.44 

12 months and within 

24 months 
0% 25% 18.37% 9.44 

24 months and within 

5 years 
0% 50% 20.68% 10.63 

5 years and within 10 

years 
0% 50% 29.46% 15.15 

10 years and within 20 

years 
0% 50% 22.85% 11.75 

20 years and above 0% 20% 0% 0 

Total   100% 51.41 

 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. 

 
 

Interest rate risk indicator 
31.03.20 

Actual 
£’000s 

2019/20 
Limit 

£’000s 

Complied? 

One-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in 
interest rates 

288 400 Yes 

Upper limit on a one-year revenue impact of 
a 1% fall in interest rates 

288 1,000 Yes 

Page 30Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD15  

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 1 year  

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of 

incurring loss by seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the 

total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end are:   

 

Limits on principal invested 

beyond year end 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Internally Managed Funds £20m £15m £10m 

Externally Managed Funds £125m £125m £125m 

 

The Council did not exceed any of the limits above during 2019/20.  All internally 

invested funds were invested for periods less than 364 days.  The externally 

managed funds classified as long-term and therefore likely to be held for more 

than 1 year totalled £57.80m. 

 
3.12 Other Items  
 
 External Service Providers  

 
Arlingclose is appointed as the Council’s treasury management adviser.  The 

Council is clear as to the services it expects and is provided under the contract. 

 

The Council is also clear that overall responsibility for treasury management 

always remains with the Council.  

 
Training 
 
Council Officers responsible for treasury management have attended training 

courses throughout the year. 

 

IFRS 16 

 

CIPFA/LASAAC has proposed delaying the implementation of the new IFRS 16 

Leases accounting standard for a further year to 2021/22 

 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Council Performing Strongly Theme PS1 – this is the robust management of 
the Council’s day to day finances, enabling it to meet its financial obligations 
to all stakeholders by offering a high quality, value for money service. 
Regular monitoring and scrutiny of the Council’s financial position, and, in 
particular its treasury management function is key to maintaining a sound 

Page 31 Agenda Item 7



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD16  

financial strategy. This is an important element of the Corporate Health 
theme. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications Total interest paid on the Council’s 
outstanding debt was £1.34m.  The net 
outturn for the Council’s investments 
was £2.95m against a probable outturn 
of £2m, due to performance of the 
externally managed pooled funds.  

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Treasury operations are tightly 
regulated and the Council’s external 
advisers consulted regularly, thus 
minimising the risk to the Council.  

  
 
 
 
Appendices -   
Appendix A: Internally and externally managed investments  
Appendix B: Non-treasury investments 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report 
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Banking 
2019/2020 
 
Statement of 
Accounts 
2019/20 & 
working papers 
 
Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 2019/20 

  Catherine Bailey 
01322 343312 

Strategic 
Directorate 
Internal 
Services 
Financial 
Services 

N/A 
 

 

Page 32Agenda Item 7



Internally & Externally Managed Investments       Appendix A 
       
Table 1 – In house Investments 

 Institution Investment 
£m 

Interest Rate 

Overnight Investments ¹   

Money 
market 
funds 

Aberdeen  7.00  0.48% 

Federated 7.00 0.41% 

Blackrock 7.00 0.37% 

Insight 7.00 0.31% 

CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund 2.50 0.48% 

DB Advisors 1.93 0.33% 

Amundi 1.32 0.41% 

Invesco 7.00 0.38% 

Sub total: Overnight Investments 40.75  

Total in-house funds invested 40.75  
 

¹ The interest rate quoted for the Money Market Funds (MMF) are as at 31st March 2020, rates for MMF are quoted daily after the close of business. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



Internally & Externally Managed Investments       Appendix A 
       
Table 2 - External Pooled Funds as at 31st March 2020 

 

                           

Fund Type Value as at 
31/03/2019 

£m 

New 
Investment 

£m 

Investments 
Sold £m 

Realised 
Gain/(Loss) 

£m 

Market 
Value as at 
31/03/2020 

£m 

Change in 
Value - 

Unrealised 
Gain 

/(Loss)  £m 

Cash Plus Funds 19.00  (6.04) 0.04 12.87 (0.10) 

Short Bond Funds 15.06    14.73 (0.33) 

Long Dated Bond Funds 16.54    15.44 (1.10) 

Equity Income Funds 20.06 5.00   20.34 (4.72) 

Multi Asset Income Funds 23.31 2.00 (2.06)  20.31 (2.95) 

Property Funds 1.97    1.90 (0.07) 

TOTAL 95.95 7.00 8.10 0.04 85.59 (9.27) 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



Annual Treasury Report  Appendix B 

Non-Treasury Investments 

 

 
Property 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 

 Value in 
accounts 
£’000’s 

Unrealised 
Gains or 
(losses) 
£’000’s 

Disposals 
£’000’s 

Value in 
accounts 
£’000’s 

Income 
Received 
£’000’s 

59-65 Hythe Street 
(Greek Taverna) 

418 0  418 34 

The Bridge development 6,855 (379) (2,823) 3,653 0 

Crown buildings (land 
only) 

800 59  859 139 

146 Lowfield Street (land 
only) 

49 0  49 
0 
 

16 Market Street 104 5  109 10 

Orchard Shopping Centre 
(land only) 

2,640 376  3,016 215 

37 Essex Road (Nightclub 
– land only) 

280 15  295 100 

Orchard Clocktower 0   0 1 

Fleet Estate Freehold 
interest 

35 3  38 0 

43 Overy Street 0   0 4 

HRA Investment 
Properties 

1,628 84  1,712 153 

TOTAL 12,810 163 (2,823) 11,149 656 

Page 35 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

 
 

 

Capital Programme Including Prudential Indicators - Outturn 
2019/2020 
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of the final pre-audit figures for the 2019/20 Capital Programme, 

the capital resources that were used to fund it and those that remain available to 
fund future investment.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. That Cabinet note the draft outturn for the Capital Programme for 2019/20. 

 
2.2. That Cabinet note the draft outturn position for 2019/20 on Capital resources, 

and the balance available to be carried forward into 2020/21. 
 
2.3. That the Cabinet recommend the total capital budget carried forward into 

2020/21, as set out in Appendix C to the General Assembly of the Council. 
 

2.4. That Cabinet note the outturn position on the Capital Prudential Indicators as 
shown in Appendix D. 

 
2.5. That the General Assembly of the Council be asked to agree the capital 

budget carried forward into 2020/21 as per Appendix C, thereby increasing the 
total capital budget to £31.036m 
 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The original budget for the 2019/20 Capital Programme was approved by 
the Council on 25 February 2019 at £30.268m and was later increased by 
the General Assembly of the Council to include funding for continuing 
projects carried forward from 2018/19. The final approved budget for the 
year was £30.771m. 

 
3.2. The probable outturn of £19.389m was reported to the GAC on 24 February 

2020. 
 

3.3. The final outturn (subject to audit) on the Capital Programme was 
£17.379m.  
 
 
 
 

Page 37 Agenda Item 8



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

  

 
3.4. Appendix A details the outturn for 2019/20, and the resources available to 

fund future years’ projects, which specifically relate to Housing; Appendix B 
gives the same information for all other projects. Both show the: 

 
 Current Approved Budget – the original budget plus any approved 

virements during the year. 
 

 Probable Outturn – the indicative outturn position as reported to 
the General Assembly of the Council on 24 February 2020. 

 
 Outturn – the actual outturn for the year. 

 
 Variance – the difference between probable and actual outturn 

 
 Resources: showing the resources brought forward from earlier 

periods, those added in the year, how much was used to finance 
capital expenditure in 2019/20, and the amount available to be 
carried forward to fund future expenditure. 

 
Appendix C shows the residual budget requirement necessary to complete 
2019/20 projects, which will be carried forward into 2020/21.  
 
Appendix D shows the outturn position on the Capital Prudential Indicators. 

 
3.5  Reasons for the main variances (over £50,000 in value) between the 

probable outturn and the actual outturn are detailed below: 
 

Council Housing Projects – less than projected by £1,130,000 
 
Overall, there was an under spend of £1,130,000 against the projected out 
turn.  Most of this underspend was on the new Council homes project with 
some additional underspend on other projects. A total of £433,000 is 
proposed to be carried forward to 2020/21 and will be funded by an increase 
in the HRA contribution to capital budget. 
 
The major individual variances within this sum were as follows: 
 
Central heating renewals – less than projected by £71,000 
 
Access issues throughout made the programme delivery slow. In addition to 
this a number of jobs were cancelled in the last two weeks of March due to 
the COVID19 pandemic and risk of infection and will instead be completed 
during 2020/21.  The underspend is therefore included in the capital budgets 
to be carried forward in Appendix C. 
 
 
 

Page 38Agenda Item 8



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

  

Rewiring – more than projected by £61,000: 
 
There was better access to properties this year and so more re-wires were 
able to be completed than expected, utilising other underspends to cover 
the budget. 
 
Asbestos Removal – Less than projected by £62,000 
 
The requirement for asbestos removal works needed to enable other capital 
works was low this year and therefore budget spend is low. 
 
Communal Areas – Less than projected by £144,000 
 
Poor weather during the year delayed the roofing works and not all of the 
programme could be delivered within the 12 month period. 
 
Supported Housing – Less than projected by £74,000 
 
The re-carpeting of communal areas had to be stopped due to the COVID19 
pandemic as it was not deemed to be safe to continue given the carpet 
layers were working in communal areas. 
 
There are two schemes still to be carpeted. 
 
Housing IT Upgrade – Less than projected by £107,000 
 
Delays were caused in terms of finding and using the correct procurement 
framework to source the appropriate solution and a supplier to provide this. 
Once agreed the negotiations then took some time to agree a final product 
and proposal that suited Dartford needs. These issues have now been 
addressed and the carried forward element of the budget will be spent in 
2020/21. 
 
New Housebuilding – Less than projected by £683,000: 
 
The underspend against projected outturn was mainly due to not completing 
on the purchase of land the Council had identified. The vendor had been 
slower than expected in responding to the Council’s approaches. 
  
The initial budget was set to match the Council house sale income retained 
for the rebuilding of Council homes. The Council has three years to spend 
the retained funds, otherwise the unspent 141 match funds are recycled to 
MHCLG with interest. Dartford are among several councils to have made 
representations to the Government suggesting greater flexibility regarding 
spending deadlines. The Council is committed to delivering more Council 
homes but the development process is complex, particularly when land 
acquisition is required. It is difficult to match the profile of new build scheme 
expenditure to the unrelated profile of income for the sale of houses.   

Page 39 Agenda Item 8



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

  

 
 
Backlog 
 
There is still a backlog of HRA major replacements. As at 31 March 2020 
this stood at £3.5m (£3.3m in 2018/19). These repairs are continuously 
reviewed and updated by the Housing Maintenance Manager and are 
included in programmes of work, as appropriate. A sum of £5.8m is set 
aside in 2020/21 for works to the existing HRA stock and it is considered 
that the backlog sum is manageable in the context of the overall capital and 
revenue works programmes. 
 
General Fund Projects: overall, the programme underspent against the 
projection by £880,000. Reasons for the main variances (over £50,000 in 
value) between the probable outturn and the actual outturn are detailed 
below: 
 
Stone Lodge – Less than projected by £404,000 
 
Although the site was handed over to the rugby club in October 2019 there 
was some snagging works and landscaping still to be completed.  Due to 
bad weather at the start of the year, the landscaping works and snagging 
have not yet been completed.  There is therefore a final account to be paid 
to the main contractor once the works are completed in 2020/21.  
 
Civic Centre (internal repairs and improvements) – Less than projected 
by £75,000 
The Council had to suspend works within the Civic Centre due to the 
COVID19 pandemic.  The work due to be completed within year will be re-
started at the end of May.  
 
Acacia Hall – Less than projected by £296,000 
 
The underspend was mainly due to the delay in getting the KCC approval 
for the S278 new access works, which held up various elements of works on 
site that could not progress until this was in place. 
 
Town Centre Transport & Public Realm Improvements – More than 
projected by £91,000 
 
Slightly more work was completed than anticipated at the projection stage 
which also meant that the retention sums were larger which had to be 
included within the years spend.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40Agenda Item 8



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

  

Disabled Facilities Grant – Less than projected by £169,000 
  
The majority of the expenditure from this budget relates to grants; the 
mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants and discretionary assistances, all of 
these are demand led. It is very difficult to predict/forecast demand and 
expenditure. These cases can be complex and involve the input of a variety 
of external agencies/ contractors such as KCC Occupational Therapists 
(OTs), Home Improvement Agency, contractors (often specialists in a 
particular field), as well as the Planning Department, Building Control and 
sometimes Highways. For these reasons, some cases can take time to 
progress to completion, whilst some clients may drop out during the 
process. Covid 19 has also played a part in the underspend as from 
February onwards, many clients chose to hold off from works taking place, 
applying for grants and refusing access to workmen mid works.  There is 
usually a flurry of completions and payments in the last two months of the 
financial year but this has not happened this year.  
 
Appendix C shows the residual budget requirement in 2020/21 necessary 
to complete projects from 2019/20. In all cases the residual budget required 
is the difference between the probable outturn and actual outturn and can 
be funded from existing resources. 

 
3.6  Capital Resources 

 
3.6.1 Capital receipts of £2.564m were received in respect of redemptions relating 

to the discounted sale scheme at The Bridge. Capital receipts of £7.901m 
relating to the Bridge development project were received and £7.2m from 
the sale of land at Stone Lodge. 
 

3.6.2 Right to Buy sales: a total of 20 properties were sold during the year, which 
is an increase of 3 on those sold in 2018/19. These sales produced a capital 
receipt of £3.043m, of which £405,142 was paid to MHCLG under legislation 
concerning the pooling of housing capital receipts. A sum of £2.082m is 
earmarked as “one for one” receipts and must be used on the provision of 
new social housing within three years of receipt, and match-funded in a ratio 
of 30:70 from other eligible funding sources.   
 

3.6.3 Other miscellaneous receipts totalling £272,359 were also received. 
  

3.6.4 The balance of usable receipts for general use to be carried forward into 
2020/21 is £19.501m, while that of receipts restricted to New Build schemes 
stands at £5.121m making a total of £24.622m available to invest in the 
Council’s assets.  
 

3.6.5 Unapplied capital grants totalling £1.124m are being carried forward into 
2020/21 and are available to finance future expenditure.  
 

Page 41 Agenda Item 8



                 

CABINET 
25 June 2020 

GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL 
27 July 2020 

  

3.6.6 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) capital receipts of £9.945m are also 
held, to be used on future projects to be agreed by Cabinet. 

 
4 Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 The capital programme covers many individual projects and will contribute to 
meeting many of the objectives in the Corporate Plan. 

 
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications The draft outturn on capital funded projects 
for 2019/20 is £17.4m, and the capital 
resources to be carried forward into 2020/21 
total £36.3m (inclusive of £5.1m ‘141 
receipts’).  

Because the projects listed in Appendix C 
were not completed in 2019/20, Cabinet is 
asked to recommend to GAC the approval of 
an overall increase in the 2019/20 capital 
budget of £1.208m. As noted in paragraph 
3.5 this can be funded from existing 
resources. 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment The accounts are in draft and subject to audit 

  
6 Appendices 

Appendix A - Capital Programme, Budget and Resources– Housing Projects 
2019/20 
 
Appendix B - Capital Programme, Budget and Resources – Other Projects 
2019/20 
 
Appendix C - Capital Budgets - Proposed Carry Forward into 2020/21 
 
Appendix D - Capital Prudential Indicators 2019/20 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File 
 Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Catherine Bailey 
01322 343312 

Financial Services 
Internal Services 

N/A 

 

Page 42Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - BUDGET, OUTTURN & RESOURCES

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2019/2020

CURRENT PROBABLE 
BUDGET  OUTTURN  OUTTURN

2019/2020 2019/2020 2019/2020 VARIANCE
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

COUNCIL HOUSING PROJECTS

Disabled Adaptations 250 250 260 10

Decent Homes Works:

Central Heating Renewals 750 750 679 (71)

Rewiring 880 880 941 61

Asbestos Removal 175 150 88 (62)

Rising Main Replacement 25 20 7 (13)

Door Replacements 60 75 96 21

Kitchen and Bathrooms 1,089 1,050 1,075 25

External Wall Rendering 1,465 1,635 1,630 (5)

Door Entry Systems 75 115 97 (18)

Fascia /Soffit Replacements 35 35 20 (15)

Roof Renewal 294 130 137 7

Roof Tanks/Water Mains Supply 50 10 0 (10)

Communal Areas 1,065 1,000 856 (144)

External Chimneys 25 0 0 0

Lift Replacement 50 50 13 (37)

Supported Housing 200 162 88 (74)

Major Repairs 50 188 173 (15)

Housing IT Upgrade 300 127 20 (107)

Other Projects:

New Homes 5,044 1,800 1,117 (683) 

SUB TOTAL : COUNCIL HOUSING  PROJECTS 11,882 8,427 7,297 (1,130)

Resources

Brought

 Forward

Additions

 in Year

Used to Fund 

Capital 

Expenditure

Reimbursement 

of 1-4-1 

Receipts

Carried 

forward

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Major Repairs Reserve 0 3,518 (3,518) 0 0

Contribution from Revenue 0 2,642             (2,642) 0 0

New Capital Receipts 0 21                  (21) 0 0

RTB Retention Scheme: 1-4-1 receipts 4,393 2,083             (335) (1,020) 5,121

Capital Grants & Contributions 819 610                (781) 0 648

5,212 8,874 (7,297) (1,020) 5,769

Page 43 Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - BUDGET, OUTTURN & RESOURCES

GENERAL FUND 2019/2020

CURRENT PROBABLE

BUDGET  OUTTURN  OUTTURN

2019/2020 2019/2020 2019/2020 VARIANCE

Capital Projects £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Acacia Hall 4,767 2,950 2,654 (296)

IT Equipment 123 200 198 (2)

The Orchard Theatre 490 490 500 10

Other Corporate Properties 30 30 15 (15)

Leisure and Open Spaces 750 15 0 (15)

Stone Lodge 2,833 2,880 2,476 (404)

Town Centre Transport and Public Realm Improvements 6,925 3,117 3,208 91

Fairfield Improvement Works 95 0 3 3

Cemetery Storage 15 0 0 0

Civic Centre Refurbishment 691 600 525 (75)

Community Infrastructure Levy Expenditure 1,500 0 0 0

Vehicle Replacement 0 30 23 -7

Judo Centre 0 0 -1 -1

Housing Projects

Disabled Facilities Grants 670 650 481 (169)

Total General Fund Projects 18,889 10,962 10,082 (880)

Right of use assets/finance leases 0

Resources

Brought

 Forward

Additions

 in Year

Used to Fund 

Capital 

Expenditure

Carried 

forward

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Capital Receipts (net of pooling) 7,402 18,394 (6,295) 19,501      

Grants & Contributions 1,255 3,558 (3,689) 1,124        

Grants & Contributions - CIL 4,622 5,323 0 9,945        

Revenue Contribution 0 98 (98) 0

13,279 27,373 (10,082) 30,570

Page 44Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX C

CAPITAL BUDGETS - PROPOSED CARRY-FORWARD INTO 2020/21

Approved 

Budget 

2019/20

Probable 

Outturn 

2019/20

Outturn

2019/20

Proposed 

virement/carry 

forward to 

2020/21 

Budget 

Approved 

2020/21

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget 

2020/21

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2019/20 Projects requring a reisdual budget for 

completion in 2020/21

Housing Revenue Account: Roll forward of budget 

requested

Central Heating renewals 750 750 679 71 750 821

Communal areas 1,065 1,000 856 144 600 744

Lift Replacement 50 50 13 37 35 72

Supported Housing 200 162 88 74 225 299

Housing IT Upgrade 300 127 20 107 213 320

2,365 2,089 1,656 433 1,823 2,256

General Fund: Roll forward of budget requested

Acacia Hall 4,767 2,950 2,654 296 3,767 4,063

Civic Centre Refurbishment 691 600 525 75 250 325

Stone Lodge 2,833 2,880 2,476 404 2,340 2,744

8,291 6,430 5,655 775 6,357 7,132

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 46



  Appendix D  

1 

 

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019/20 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 

Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much money it can afford to borrow. 

The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the 

capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that 

treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice. To 

demonstrate that the Authority has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out the 

following indicators that must be set and monitored each year. 

Estimates of Capital Expenditure: The Authority’s capital expenditure and financing may 

be summarised as follows.   

Capital Expenditure and 

Financing 

2019/20 

Actual 

£m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 10.082 18.248 8.749 

General Fund – Right of Use 

Assets/finance leases 
1.434 0.000 1.509 

HRA  7.297 11.580 10.304 

Total Expenditure 18.813 29.828 20.562 

Capital Receipts 6.651 12.594 3.256 

External sources/grants 4.470 7.657 7.534 

Revenue/ Reserves 6.258 9.577 8.263 

Right of use assets/finance 

leases MRP 
0.220 0.191 1.690 

Capital Financing 

Requirement 
1.214 (0.191) (0.181) 

Total Financing 18.813 29.828 20.562 

 

The Council entered into a new waste collection contract in July 2019 which includes the right to use 

and control specific assets, namely refuse collection vehicles.  These have to be recognised as an 

embedded lease and the assets recognised as a capital asset.  The Council is committed to making 

minimum payments under this lease comprising settlement of the long-term liability and interest.  The 

financing of these assets increases the capital financing requirement (CFR) initially with annual 

minimum revenue provision (MRP) set aside to reduce the CFR over the term of the lease.  

At the time of setting the budget the Council was expecting to have to recognise operating leases 

during 2020/21, where the Council is the lessee, as capital assets as per the requirements of IFRS16.  

These assets are classed as right of use assets.  The implementation of IFRS16 has now been 

delayed by one year and so the right of use assets in the above table have been updated to reflect 

this. 

Page 47 Agenda Item 8



  Appendix D  

2 

 

The table above does not include the increase to the expenditure as requested by the approval of the 

carry forward balances in appendix C.  Should approval be granted then the capital expenditure 

estimate in 2020/21 will increase by £1.208m (£0.433m for HRA and £0.775 for General Fund)   

Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement: The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures 

the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.  

Capital Financing 

Requirement 

31.03.20 

Actual 

£m 

31.03.21 

Estimate 

£m 

31.03.22 

Estimate 

£m 

31.03.23 

Estimate 

£m 

General Fund 1.214 1.023 2.532 2.870 

HRA  51.405 46.962 37.518 33.975 

Total CFR 52.619 47.985 40.050 36.845 

 

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that, over the medium 

term, debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Authority should ensure that debt does not, except in 

the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the 

estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. 

This is a key indicator of prudence. 

Debt 

31.03.20 

Actual 

£m 

31.03.21 

Estimate 

£m 

31.03.22 

Estimate 

£m 

31.03.23 

Estimate 

£m 

Borrowing 51.405 46.962 37.518 33.975 

Total Debt (CFR) 52.619 47.985 40.050 36.845 

 

Total debt is expected to remain below CFR during the forecast period.   

Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary is based on the Authority’s 

estimate of most likely (i.e. prudent but not worst case) scenario for external debt. It links directly to 

the Authority’s estimates of capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement and cash flow 

requirements, and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring.  Other long-term liabilities 

comprise finance leases and other liabilities that are not borrowing but form part of the Authority’s 

debt. The level set includes an allowance for the possibility of significant payments due to successful 

business rate appeals. Debt remained within boundaries during the period. 

Operational Boundary 
2019/20  

£m 

2020/21 

£m 

2021/22 

£m 

Borrowing 100 100 100 

Other long-term liabilities 15 15 15 

Total Debt 115 115 115 

 

Authorised Limit for External Debt: The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit determined 

in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.  It is the maximum amount of debt that the 

Authority can legally owe.  The authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational 

boundary for unusual cash movements. 

Page 48Agenda Item 8



  Appendix D  

3 

 

Authorised Limit 
2019/20  

£m 

2020/21  

£m 

2021/22  

£m 

2022/23 

£m 

Borrowing 120 120 120 120 

Other long-term liabilities 20 20 20 20 

Total Debt 140 140 140 140 

 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an indicator of affordability and highlights 

the revenue implications of existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of 

the revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net of investment income. 

Ratio of Financing Costs 

to Net Revenue Stream 

2019/20 

Revised 

% 

2019/20 

Projected 

Outturn 

% 

2020/21  

Estimate 

% 

2021/22 

Estimate 

% 

General Fund -22.58 -15.47 -7.60 -0.60 

HRA  6.24 6.12 5.72 5.18 

 

The General Fund ratio is negative because interest revenues exceed financing costs.  

 

 

Page 49 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 

MD1 
 

 

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING – OUTTURN 2019/2020 
 

 
1. Summary 
 

1.1  To inform Members of the detailed final pre-audit 2019/20 figures for the 
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, including reasons for 
significant variances compared to the probable outturn. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1  That the 2019/20 outturn for the General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account, together with the reasons for significant variances compared to 
probable outturn, be noted. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion   
 

3.1.1. The revenue budgets for 2019/20 were approved by the Council on 
25 February 2019. Monitoring reports have been submitted 
throughout the year and, where necessary, virements have been 
approved. 

 
3.1.2. The Council, at its meeting on 24 February 2020, considered and 

approved the budget for 2020/21.  An integral part of this process 
was the estimate of the “probable outturn” for 2019/20. 

 
3.1.3. Attached as Appendix A to this report is the General Fund Summary 

which shows the: 
 

Original budget – as approved by the General Assembly of the 
Council on 25 February 2019.  

 
 Current Budget – original budget plus any virements approved 

during the year. 
 

 Probable Outturn – indicative outturn position as reported to the 
General Assembly of the Council on 24 February 2020. 

 
Provisional Outturn – provisional actual outturn for the year. 

 
 Variance – the difference between probable outturn and 

provisional actual outturn. 
 

The outturn on service budgets for the General Fund was 
£10,452,733. This was £1,225,547 less than was allowed for when 
preparing the probable outturn in February. After inclusion of inflation, 

Page 51 Agenda Item 9



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 
 

MD2 
 

 

bad debt provision adjustments and HRA recharge, the total 
underspend compared with the probable outturn is adjusted to 
£1,004,850.  Appendix B details the larger variances between the 
probable outturn and the provisional final outturn on service budgets. 
There were also many other reductions of smaller amounts. 

 
3.1.4. The effects of the Covid-19 crisis came too late in March to 

significantly change the 2019-20 outturn position but did result in 
unrealised losses in investments and adjustments to bad debt 
provisions to account for increased defaults. 
 

3.1.5. Retained business rate income was slightly higher than that 
projected. This is mainly due to higher grant income than had been 
previously assumed, as more discounts eligible for grant support than 
expected were awarded. 
  

3.1.6. Pool growth funds of £560,000 were also receivable in year but were 
transferred to the relevant reserve.  

 
3.1.7. Due to Collection Fund accounting regulations, not all of the Council’s 

share of the retained rates fund is included in year. Another £752,000 
remains in the Collection Fund for future distribution. 

 
3.1.8. Other general grants announced during the year of £101,000 were 

received (net figure after £75,000 used for capital funding). 
 

3.1.9. In accordance with delegated authority powers, the Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) transferred an additional £1,938,000 into 
earmarked reserves to that previously projected. 

 
3.1.10. The year-end transfers to/from earmarked reserves were:  

 

 the budgeted transfer of £4.7m of New Homes Bonus into the 
specific reserves set against the Medium Term Financial Plan 
and infrastructure support 

 A contribution of £3.3m to increase the Investment Volatility 
Reserve which sets aside funds against the significant 
unrecognised losses in external investments as a result of 
Covid 19.  

 
3.1.11. The balance on the General Fund at 31 March 2020 was reduced to 

£3.0m to enable the transfer noted above.  
 

3.1.12. Some expenditure is funded from the Identified Initiatives Reserve; in 
2019/2020 net expenditure amounted to £288,000. Other specific 
expenditure from reserves totalled £321,000 with set aside specific 

Page 52Agenda Item 9



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 
 

MD3 
 

 

income of £580,000.  Expenditure from reserves is not constrained 
within the year of account. 

 
 

3.1.13. The summary Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is attached as 
Appendix C. The HRA made a surplus for the year of £1.456m 
compared with a projected deficit of £0.601m The balance carried 
forward is £13.8m. As per the capital outturn report to Members, 
£433,000 of this is designated for roll over capital funding. Members 
are also reminded of the need to ensure sufficient funds are held to 
meet the maturity loan of £5m payable in 2022. A commentary on the 
significant variances is given in Appendix D.  

 
 
 

3. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 Not applicable. 

 
4. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications Net Expenditure on General Fund 
Services was £3.01m lower than the 
Original Budget.  Reserve contributions 
were not required as per the original 
budget and an additional £3.2m was 
allocated to specific reserves. 
 
At 31 March 2020 the balance on the 
General Fund was £3.0m with 
earmarked reserves of £42m. 
 
The balance on the HRA at 31 March 
2020 was £13.8m. 
 
The Council’s accounts for 2020/21 will 
be signed off after the completion of the 
audit. Until the accounts are signed off, 
figures in this report remain provisional. 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment The accounts are in draft and subject to 
audit. 

  

Page 53 Agenda Item 9



                 

CABINET 
25 JUNE 2020 

 
 
 

MD4 
 

 

5. Appendices 
 

Appendix A: General Fund Summary Outturn 
Appendix B: Commentary on General Fund Variances 
Appendix C: Housing Revenue Account Outturn 
Appendix D: Commentary on Housing Revenue Account Variances 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
01322 343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services 
 

N/A 

 

Page 54Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY

BUDGET 

2019/2020

CURRENT 

BUDGET 

2019/2020

PROBABLE 

OUTTURN 

2019/2020

OUTTURN 

2019/2020

VARIANCE 

2019/2020

£ £ £ £ £

INTERNAL SERVICES 6,021,680 5,794,490 4,148,210 3,107,666 (1,040,544)

MANAGING DIRECTOR 400,530 351,400 354,180 271,384 (82,797)

EXTERNAL SERVICES 7,248,090 7,074,980 7,175,890 7,073,683 (102,207)

13,670,300 13,220,870 11,678,280 10,452,733 (1,225,547)

Plus

Allowance for Inflation 140,000 104,070 30,000 0 (30,000)

Increase in provisions 0 0 0 348,675 348,675

Less 0

Employee vacancy factor/adjustment (125,000) 360,360 0 0 0

Support to other funds (865,000) (865,000) (965,000) (1,062,978) (97,978)

12,820,300 12,820,300 10,743,280 9,738,430 (1,004,850)

Contribution to Reserves 4,773,509 4,773,509 6,036,351 7,974,955 1,938,604

Net General Fund Budget 17,593,809 17,593,809 16,779,631 17,713,386 933,755

Income

Business Rate Retention and Related Grants

(4,829,769) (4,829,769) (4,627,460) (4,720,029) (92,569)

Business Rate Surplus
(170,231) (170,231) (170,231) (170,231) 0

Other Grants 0 0 0 (101,663) (101,663)

Homes Bonus (4,773,509) (4,773,509) (4,773,509) (4,773,509) 0

Total Business Rates and Grant Income
(9,773,509) (9,773,509) (9,571,200) (9,765,432) (194,232)

Collection Fund Surplus (498,896) (498,896) (498,896) (498,896) 0

Council Tax (6,709,535) (6,709,535) (6,709,535) (6,709,332) 203

Total Income
(16,981,940) (16,981,940) (16,779,631) (16,973,660) (194,029)

USE OF BALANCES/RESERVES (611,869) (697,404) 0 0 0

Total Income (17,593,809) (17,679,344) (16,779,631) (16,973,660) (194,029)

General Reserve balance brought forward (3,739,726) (3,000,000) (3,739,726) (3,739,726) 0

General Reserve balance carried forward (3,739,726) (2,914,465) (3,739,726) (3,000,000) 739,726

Page 55 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



 

Appendix B 
2019/20 OUTTURN 
 

Staff Vacancy Factor   
 
The salary savings budget provision of £125,000 was met early in the financial year and an 
outturn of a minimum of £485,000 was expected.  By the end of March, a further £67,000 had 
been achieved. This excludes salary savings incurred as part of the shared services 
arrangements. 
 

Inflation Allowance   
Each year a global sum is set aside within the budget for inflation increases and for 2019/20 
this was set at £140,000. Throughout the year, as and when annual increases in 
contracts/annual payments are determined, virements are actioned to the appropriate budget 
headings from the set aside sum. At projected outturn stage, £36,000 of this allowance had 
been used.  A further £30,000 was held pending any further increases.  This sum was not 
required. 
 

Covid 19 
 
The Council received its first grant in March to assist with additional expenditure incurred due 
to Covid 19.  Against the grant of £47,832, just over £21,500 was spent with the balance now 
being held in reserves, specifically for use in 2020/21.  An update on the Council’s current 
position regarding further grant, expenditure and loss of income is detailed in a separate 
report within this agenda. 
 

 
INTERNAL SERVICES 
 
Legal Services   
 
Legal fees is a difficult budget to manage as service requirements dictate its use each year.  
This year the net annual budget (including the recharge to HRA) was £56,360 and was 
underspent by £13,000 as the Council received a refund of legal fees incurred the previous 
financial year, following successful litigation. Additionally, income was £6,000 higher than 
projection. 

 
Land Charges   
 
Throughout the year land charges income was on course to be close to its budget of £80,000, 
however adjustments have been necessary regarding corrections to the treatment of income 
for VAT purposes. The total adjustment was for £29, 950, and of this £24,300 relates to 
previous financial years. The outturn for the year was thereby reduced to £49.700. 

 
Valuation Services   
 
Valuation Services is an externally provided service and its budget provides for the contracted 
costs and its management. An element of the budget is set aside for ad hoc and additional 
work and this was not required in 2019/20, partially as a result of major rent review exercises 
undertaken in the previous year. This has resulted in an underspend of £25,000. 
 

 
Audit Shared Services   
 
The service has underspent by £52,000.  This has occurred due to staff vacancies and the 
subsequent anticipated use of an external service provider to undertake specific audits which 
were then delayed due to Covid 19. Dartford’s share of redundancy costs following a 
restructure of the service were alternatively funded and additionally the shared service was 
partially reimbursed for legal fees incurred in the previous financial years. 

 

Page 57 Agenda Item 9



 

 
Benefits 
 
The expected surplus did not fully materialise with a surplus of £81,000 against the projection 
of £277,000. In the main this was due to a payments run timing issue which depressed the 
outturn this year and led to a larger surplus in the previous year.  
 
 
Interest   
 
The Council has achieved investment income of £2.95m.  The projected out turn of £2m has 
therefore been exceeded.  The largest proportion of this income come s from dividends from 
the externally managed pooled funds.  Dividends from these funds are subject to fluctuations 
in the markets and past performance is not a guaranteed indicator of future performance, 
therefore the projection set was very prudent.  The funds have continued to perform well 
throughout the year and the actual dividends declared in the final quarter were larger than the 
prudent estimates predicted. The income performance was strong in year but capital values 
have decreased due to the Covid-19 crisis and future income is likely to suffer as a result. The 
treasury outturn report provides more details on this.  

 
Eltham Crematorium   
 
The estimated distribution payment for 2019/20 is £121,000, this is £104,000 under the initial 
budget and £54,000 under the projection. Income from the arrangement has been reducing 
(15/16 £259K, 16/17 £264K, 17/18 £212K, 18/19 £167K). Information was unavailable at the 
time of the projected outturn exercise and it was hoped that outturn would be slightly better 
than the 2018/19 figure of £167,000.  However there has been a continuing drop in the 
number of cremations. Additionally the cost of cremator maintenance and utility bills have 
been increasing resulting in a significantly lower distribution to all parties. 

 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 
Modernising Local Government and Consultancy   
 
The full budget for modernising local government, consultancy and training was not required 
during 2019/20, as costs were managed by other funds.  This resulted in a reduced spend of 
£53,000. 

 
EXTERNAL SERVICES 
 
Cemeteries   
 
The cemeteries services underspent by £24,000.  In the earlier part of the year, income 
appeared low against its budget of £195,000 and a projection of £170,000 was assumed.  
Income recovered in the latter part of the year to achieve £183,000.  Additionally there were 
minor savings with salaries and equipment. 

 
Development Control     
 
Income from planning fees performed well in 2019/20. The budget at £849,000 was 
comfortably achieved and the projected outturn provided in the autumn for £1,133,000 was 
met.  As a result a contribution to reserves has been made for £200,000 to cover continuing 
resource demands. 

 
Temporary Accommodation   
 
In the context of the size of the budget predicted spend levels were close to the £1.24m 
projected. Actual outturn was £1.20m with lower spend on nightly paid accommodation than 
expected.  

Page 58Agenda Item 9



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT Appendix C

OUTTURN

CURRENT

BUDGET

PROJECTED

OUTTURN OUTTURN VARIANCE

2018/2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 2019/2020

£ £ £ £ £

Income and Expenditure Account

Income

Rents from houses (19,432,751) (19,412,000) (19,777,240) (19,689,750) 87,490

Other rents (805,396) (805,530) (813,140) (808,286) 4,854

Tenants' Charges for Services and Facilities (893,170) (603,610) (956,440) (871,395) 85,045

Leaseholders' Charges for Services and Facilities (458,634) (200,000) (393,440) (335,481) 57,959

Minor Capital Receipts (5,000) 0 (3,000) (3,000) 0

Total Income (21,594,950) (21,021,140) (21,943,260) (21,707,912) 235,348

Expenditure

General management 3,388,308 3,463,050 3,491,760 3,471,133 (20,627)

Special management 573,112 694,820 661,290 720,105 58,815

  Housing services for the elderly 520,576 705,420 637,530 626,680 (10,850)

Planned repairs 1,086,733 1,200,980 1,162,290 980,093 (182,197)

General repairs 1,458,428 1,715,620 1,651,710 1,695,176 43,466

General repairs - voids 700,840 732,640 738,500 751,196 12,696

Provision for bad debts 158,942 200,000 200,000 97,771 (102,229)

Miscellaneous 21,914 23,240 27,410 25,856 (1,554)

Capital charges:

Depreciation - dwellings/contribution to MRR 3,462,377 3,061,000 3,517,870 3,517,869 (1)

Depreciation - non-dwelling assets 103,760 131,000 105,000 184,169 79,169

Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets 2,236,343 0 0 1,213,230 1,213,230

Total Expenditure 13,711,335 11,927,770 12,193,360 13,283,279 1,089,919

Net cost of services (7,883,616) (9,093,370) (9,749,900) (8,424,633) (656,530)

Interest payable 1,438,622 1,344,020 1,344,020 1,344,017 (3)

Interest receivable (76,156) (41,900) (84,080) (83,256) 824

Debt repayment 4,443,490 4,443,490 4,443,490 4,443,490 (0)

Net operating expenditure (2,077,661) (3,347,760) (4,046,470) (2,720,383) (655,710)

Appropriations

Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve - non-

dwelling depreciation (103,760) (131,000) (105,000) (184,169) (79,169)

Revenue Contribution to Capital 5,024,918 6,737,000 3,550,000 2,641,842 (908,158)

Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets (2,236,343) 0 0 (1,213,230) (1,213,230)

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year 607,154 3,258,240 (601,470) (1,475,940) (874,470)

Balance brought forward (12,934,891) (12,327,737) (12,327,737) (12,327,737) 0

Balance carried forward (12,327,737) (9,069,498) (12,929,207) (13,803,677) (874,470)

Page 59 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



  APPENDIX D
  

 

COMMENTARY ON HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT VARIANCES   
  
The balance carried forward as at 31 March 2020 into the 2020/21 financial 
year is £13,803,677. This is £874,470 higher than the probable outturn 
reported to GAC on 24 February 2020.   
 
The major components of this difference are: 
 
 Dwelling Rents 

Tenants’ Charges for Services and 
Facilities 
Planned Repairs 

87,490 
 

85,045 
(182.197) 

 Provision for bad debts (102,229) 
   
   
  Revenue Contribution to Capital 

 
(908,158) 

   
INCOME 
 
Dwelling Rents 
The 2019/20 financial year was the last of four years in which the HRA was 
required to offer a 1% reduction in its rents therefore the budget had been set 
conservatively. The variance was 0.0045% compared to the total budget. The 
reasons for this variance include a rise in voids due to the start of the impact 
from COVID-19, however the variance is very low proportionately. 
 
Tenants’ Charges for Services and Facilities 
Like dwelling rents, outturn was slightly lower than projected outturn for the 
same reasons. 
 
 
EXPENDITURE 
 
Planned Repairs 
This budget is underspent by £182,000, compared to £89,000 in the previous 
year. According to the programme manager, this is a result of the contract 
ending and the procurement of a new one, which affected in year delivery. 
There was also a lot of storm damage works last year and this affected the 
delivery of planned works as staff were concentrating on this.  
 
Provision for bad debts 
The underspend this year of £102,000 compares to last year’s of £41,000.  
There will always be a difference on this line due to the difficulties of 
estimating year-end debtors in January. 
 
 
Revenue Contribution to Capital 
The total change in this contribution is a decreased spend of £908,000 
compared to projection. The total figure is reduced due to underspending on 
general housing schemes totalling £457,000 with the balance made up of the 
underspend relating to the HRA funded element of new build expenditure. 

Page 61 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 28 May 2020
	Minutes

	6 COVID-19 Financial Update
	7 Annual Treasury Report 2019/20
	Appendix A Annual Treasury Report Internally  Externally Managed Investments 31-03-2020
	Appendix B Annual Treasury Report Non-treasury investments

	8 Capital Programme including Prudential Indicators - Outturn 2019/20
	Appendices A-C Capital Outturn report 19-20
	Appendix D Prudential Indicators

	9 Revenue Outturn 2019/20
	Appendix A Revenue Outturn 19 20
	Appendix B Revenue Outturn GF 19 20
	Appendix C  Rev Outturn HRA Summary 1920
	Appendix D HRA Outturn 19-20


